
CITY OF FRANKLIN 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING* 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

AGENDA 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2016, 7:00 P.M. 

               
 

A.   Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

B.  Approval of Minutes 
 

 1. Approval of regular meeting of September 8, 2016. 
 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters (action may be taken on all matters following  
                                                                      the respective Public Hearing thereon) 
 

1. CITY OF FRANKLIN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES IN THE NONRESIDENTIAL 
 ZONING DISTRICTS TABLE 15-3.0603 AMENDMENTS [CITY-WIDE].   
 Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment application by the City of 
 Franklin to amend Table 15-3.0603 to: remove all Membership Organizations, 
 Standard Industrial Classification Major Group No. 86, from the B-2 General 
 Business District, B-3 Community Business District, B-6 Professional Office 
 District, B-7 South 27th Street Mixed-Use Office District, CC City Civic Center 
 District, BP Business Park District, OL-1 Office Overlay District and OL-2 
 General Business Overlay District; remove the entire Planned Development 
 District column; and to add all Membership Organizations as Permitted Uses in 
 the I-1 Institutional District, along with Religious Organizations.  A PUBLIC 
 HEARING IS SCHEDULED FOR THIS MEETING UPON THIS 
 MATTER. 
   

D. Business Matters (no Public Hearing is required upon the following matters; action may be   
                                           taken on all matters) 

 
 1. RELEASE OF LANDSCAPE PLANTING BUFFER EASEMENT RESTRICTION.  
  Release of Easement Restriction on Plat application by William Gebhard and Melissa  
  Bania (Gebhard) to allow for a shed within the “40 Foot Landscape Planting Buffer”  
  located on the rear (south) area of the property at 4089 West Whispering Ridge Pass,  
  zoned R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District; Tax Key No. 787-0009-000. 

 
E. Adjournment 

 
*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City hall during normal business hours. 
 
**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have 
decision-making responsibility.  This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even though the 
Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 
 



Franklin Plan Commission Agenda 
9/22/16 
Page 2 
 
[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional 
information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.] 
 
REMINDERS: 
Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: October 6, 2016  



 
 City of Franklin 

Plan Commission Meeting 
September 8, 2016 

Minutes 
 

unapproved 
 
 

Call to Order and Roll Call A. Mayor Steve Olson called the September 8, 2016 
Regular Plan Commission meeting to order at 7:00 
p.m. in the Council Chambers at the Franklin City 
Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. 
 
Present were Alderman Mark Dandrea and 
Commissioners Patrick Leon, David Fowler and City 
Engineer Glen Morrow. Excused were 
Commissioners Kevin Haley and Patricia Hogan. 
Also present were Principal Planner Nick Fuchs and 
Planning Manager Joel Dietl. 
 
 

Approval of Minutes B.  
Regular Meeting of August 18, 2016.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Commissioner Fowler moved and Alderman Dandrea 
seconded approval of the August 18, 2016 minutes of 
the regular meeting of the Plan Commission as 
presented. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion 
carried (4-0-0). 
 
 

Public Hearing Business Matters 
 
 
 
 
Business Matters 
THE ROCK SPORTS COMPLEX 
SIGNAGE. Unified Development 
Ordinance §15-3.0442 Planned 
Development District No. 37 (The Rock 
Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons) 
Minor Amendment application by Bill 
Zimmerman, Vice President, MKE 
Sports & Entertainment, to allow for the 
installation of up to 1,200 square feet of 
signage on the outside of the 
approximately 160 foot by 20 foot 
baseball field fence near the corner of 
South 76th Street and 7900 West 
Crystal Ridge Drive, property zoned 
Planned Development District No. 37 
(The Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark 
Commons) and FW Floodway District; 
Tax Key No. 744-8980-001.   
 
 
 
 

  C. 
 
 
 
 

D. 
1   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None. 
 
 
                               
 
  
Planning Manager Dietl presented the application by 
Bill Zimmerman for a Minor Amendment to allow 
for the installation of up to 1,200 square feet of 
signage on the outside of the approximately 160 foot 
by 20 foot baseball field fence near the corner of 
South 76th Street and 7900 West Crystal Ridge 
Drive. 
 
Commissioner Fowler moved and Alderman Dandrea 
seconded a motion determining the proposed 
amendment to be a minor amendment. On voice vote, 
all voted ‘aye’. Motion carried. (4-0-0).  
 
Commissioner Morrow moved and Commissioner 
Leon seconded a motion to recommend denial of an 
ordinance to amend section 15-3.0442 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance Planned Development 
District No. 37 (The Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark 
Commons) to allow for the installation of signage on 
the ballpark fencing, for the reasons set forth on page 
3 of the Department of City Development report to 
the Plan Commission on this application. On voice 
vote, all voted ‘aye’. Motion carried. (4-0-0). 



 
Page two 
 
  
GUJARATI SAMAJ OF 
WISCONSIN 2016 DANCE EVENT 
AT THE MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
SPORTS COMPLEX. Temporary Use 
application by Gujarati Samaj of 
Wisconsin, Inc., for an annual 
celebration of Navaratri dance event 
(known as “Navararim”, most identified 
with a mother’s day dance) at the 
Milwaukee County Sports Complex 
located at 6000 West Ryan Road, on 
September 30, 2016 and October 8, 
2016, from 7:00 p.m. to 12:00 a.m., on 
property zoned P-1 Park District, FC 
Floodplain Conservancy District and 
FW Floodway District; Tax Key Nos. 
852-9999- 001 and 882-9987-001. 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E. 

                                 Plan Commission ~ Minutes  
                                                        September 8, 2016  
 
Planning Manager Dietl presented the application by 
Gujarati Samaj of Wisconsin for a Temporary Use 
application for a 2016 dance event at the Milwaukee 
County Sports Complex located at 6000 W. Ryan 
Road. 
 
Alderman Dandrea moved and Commissioner Fowler 
seconded a motion to approve a resolution imposing 
conditions and restrictions for the approval of a 
Temporary Use for an annual dance event for 
property located at 6000 W. Ryan Road (Milwaukee 
County Sports Complex). On voice vote, all voted 
‘aye’. Motion carried. (4-0-0). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Engineer Morrow moved and Alderman 
Dandrea seconded to adjourn the Plan Commission 
meeting of September 8, 2016 at 7:24 p.m. All voted 
‘aye’. Motion carried. (4-0-0). 

 



      C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of September 22, 2016 

 
Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed Unified 
Development Ordinance Text Amendment to amend the allowance for Membership 
Organizations and removal of the Planned Development District column within Table 15-3.0603 
of the UDO.   
       

Project Name:    Membership Organizations 

Project Address: N/A 

Applicant: City of Franklin  

Owners (property): N/A  

Current Zoning: N/A 

2025 Comprehensive Master Plan: N/A 

Use of Surrounding Properties: N/A  

Applicant Action Requested: Recommendation of approval for the proposed Unified 
Development Ordinance Text Amendment to Table 15-
3.0603 

 

Introduction 
At the August 2, 2016 Common Council meeting, as part of the motion related to the Root River 
Church Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment Application, Department of City 
Development staff was directed to file a Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment 
Application to remove all Membership Organizations, Standard Industrial Classification Major 
Group No. 86, from the B-3 Community Business District.  
 
At the August 16, 2016 Common Council meeting, staff presented the information below, under 
the Project Description and Analysis section of this report, and the Common Council further 
directed staff “to prepare an ordinance to amend the Unified Development Ordinance text at 
Table 15-3.0603 Major Group No. 86 for all zoning districts as recommended by the Department 
of City Development.”  
 
As such, staff prepared the necessary documentation and a Class 2 public hearing noticed was 
published in the newspaper as required by the UDO.   
 
Project Description and Analysis 
Table 15-3.0603 of the Unified Development Ordinance sets forth those uses, which are 
permitted and special uses in all nonresidential zoning districts in the City of Franklin. Use 
designations are based on the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Manual (1987, or latest 
edition) published by the Executive Office of the President, Office of Management and Budget. 

   Item C.1. 
 



 2 

 
In review of Table 15-3.0603 and Major Group No. 86, staff found that in addition to the B-3 
District, the B-2 General Business District, BP Business Park District and OL-2 General 
Business Overlay District also allow all Membership Organizations, except for SIC Code No. 
8661 Religious Organizations, similar to the B-3 District. Therefore, staff is recommending and 
requesting permission to also remove all Membership Organizations from the B-2, BP and OL-2 
Districts as well as the B-3 District.  

 
Furthermore, staff found that all Membership Organizations, including Religious Organizations 
are allowed in the B-6 Professional Office District, B-7 South 27th Street Mixed Use Office 
District, CC City Civic Center District and OL-1 Office Overlay District. As these districts are 
generally intended for retail and office type uses, and for similar reasons stated by staff regarding 
the B-3 District, staff recommends removing all Membership Organizations from these zoning 
districts as well.   

 
Additionally, Table 15-3.0603 allows SIC Code No. 8611 Business Associations, 8621 
Professional Organizations and 8699 Membership organizations, not elsewhere classified in 
PDD zoning. Staff recommends removing these as well and notes that individual uses may be 
addressed within specific planned developments. As such, staff also recommends that the entire 
PDD column within Table 15-3.0603 be eliminated.   

 
Lastly, staff recommends adding all Membership Organizations as permitted uses in the I-1 
Institutional District, along with Religious Organizations, which are already permitted in the I-1 
District.  

 
As a result, the amended table would allow SIC Code No. 8641 Civic and social associations as a 
permitted use in the B-4 District (per Ordinance No. 2012-2099) and SIC Code No. 8661 
Religious Organizations and all other Membership Organizations as permitted uses in the I-1 
Institutional District. The resulting proposed table is attached for your review. 

 
Staff would further note that it is likely that many, although not all, Membership Organizations 
such as political organizations, civic and social organizations and professional organizations 
would fall under the General Office category and would be allowed in all zoning districts as a 
permitted use, except the M-2, A-1, A-2, M-3 and L-1 zoning districts. The General Office 
definition is below.  

 
Office, General.  Any business use conducting clerical and/or professional service 
activities within a room or group of rooms and generally furnished with desks, tables, file 
cabinets, computers, phones, communication equipment and/or the like.  General office 
uses may include, but are not limited to:  computer work; research; photocopying; filing; 
over the phone sales; and answering phones or otherwise responding to communications. 
 A minimum of 75% of floor area shall be designated as office space to constitute a 
general office use.  Other uses may include ancillary storage, kitchens; break rooms and 
other office support spaces.  Retail, warehousing and outdoor storage shall be prohibited 
with a general office use.  A general office use includes the addition or relocation on the 
property of office use, on a legal nonconforming use property, after September 10, 
2015, when such office use addition or relocation occupies or shall occupy existing (as of 



 3 

September 10, 2015) building space on the property, which addition or relocation shall 
not constitute the expansion or enlargement of a legal nonconforming use under Division 
15-3.100 of the Unified Development Ordinance, and which addition or relocation shall 
be a permitted use.  In the event of an aforesaid relocation of office use upon a legal 
nonconforming use property, the space vacated by such office use within an existing (as 
of September 10, 2015) building may be otherwise occupied by the legal nonconforming 
use (if such space is less than 1,000 square feet in area), which occupation of such area 
shall not constitute the expansion or enlargement of a legal nonconforming use under 
Division 15-3.100 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
As discussed at the August 2, 2016 Common Council meeting, the Religious Land Use and 
Institutionalized Persons Act (RLUIPA) require that religious assemblies and institutions be 
treated on equal terms than non-religious assemblies and institutions. Staff finds that the 
proposed changes comply with RLUIPA.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed Unified Development Ordinance 
Text Amendment to amend the allowance for Membership Organizations and removal of the 
Planned Development District column within Table 15-3.0603 of the UDO. 



1 
 

STATE OF WISCONSIN              CITY OF FRANKLIN              MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                     [Draft 9-8-16] 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT AT 
TABLE 15-3.0603 TO DELETE STANDARD INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION MAJOR 

GROUP NO. 86 MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATIONS FROM CERTAIN ZONING 
DISTRICTS, DELETE THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT COLUMN AND TO 

INCLUDE ALL MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATIONS AND RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS 
AS PERMITTED USES IN THE I-1 INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT  

(CITY OF FRANKLIN, APPLICANT) 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, Table 15-3.0603 of the Unified Development Ordinance sets forth the 
permitted and special uses in the nonresidential zoning districts; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin having applied for text amendments to Table 15-
3.0603, to delete Standard Industrial Classification Major Group No. 86 Membership 
Organizations from certain zoning districts, to delete the Planned Development District 
column and to include all Membership Organizations and Religious Organizations as 
Permitted Uses in the I-1 Institutional District; the specific zoning districts from which 
Membership Organizations, Standard Industrial Classification Major Group No. 86 are to be 
deleted are as follows: B-2 General Business District, B-3 Community Business District, B-6 
Professional Office District, B-7 South 27th Street Mixed-Use Office District, CC City Civic 
Center District, BP Business Park District, OL-1 Office Overlay District and OL-2 General 
Business Overlay District; and 
  

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed the proposed amendments to 
delete Standard Industrial Classification Major Group No. 86 Membership Organizations 
from certain zoning districts, to delete the Planned Development District column and to 
include all Membership Organizations and Religious Organizations as Permitted Uses in the 
I-1 Institutional District, and having held a public hearing on the proposal on the 22nd day of 
September, 2016 and thereafter having recommended approval of such amendment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Common Council having accepted the recommendation of the Plan 

Commission and having determined that the proposed amendments are consistent with the 
2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin and will serve to further 
orderly growth and development and promote the health, safety and welfare of the 
Community. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1:  TABLE 15-3.0603 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES IN THE 

NONRESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS of the Unified 



2 
 

 
PDD 

 
 
 
 
 

P 

P 
P 
P 

 
 

P 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S 

P 

S 

Development Ordinance of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin is hereby amended to delete Standard Industrial 
Classification Major Group No. 86 Membership Organizations from the 
following zoning districts:  B-2 General Business District, B-3 
Community Business District, B-6 Professional Office District, B-7 South 
27th Street Mixed-Use Office District, CC City Civic Center District, BP 
Business Park District, OL-1 Office Overlay District and OL-2 General 
Business Overlay District. 
 

SECTION 2:  TABLE 15-3.0603 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES IN THE 
NONRESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS of the Unified 
Development Ordinance of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin is hereby amended to delete the Planned Development 
District column. 

 
SECTION 3:  TABLE 15-3.0603 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES IN THE 

NONRESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS of the Unified 
Development Ordinance of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin is hereby amended to include all Membership Organizations 
and Religious Organizations as Permitted Uses in the I-1 Institutional 
District. 

 
SECTION 4: The portion of TABLE 15-3.0603 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES 

IN THE NONRESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS of the Unified 
Development Ordinance of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, as amended hereunder, is as follows: 

 
Table 15-3.0603 (continued) 

SIC                      NO STANDARD INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION TITLE B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 B-5 B-6 B-7 CC VB I-1 P-1 M-1 M-2 BP OL-1 OL-2 A-1 A-2 M-3 L-1 
806 Hospitals                     8062 General medical & surgical hospitals       S   P    P S      8063 Psychiatric hospitals       P   P    P S      8069 Specialty hospitals except psychiatric       P   P    P S      807 Medical and Dental Laboratories                     8071 Medical laboratories  P P    P S    P P P P S     8072 Dental laboratories  P     P  S   P P P P S     808 Home Health Care Services                     8082 Home health care services  P P P P  P S       P S     809 Health and Allied Services, not elsewhere classified                     8092 Kidney dialysis centers  S    P P S  P    P P S     8093 Specialty outpatient clinics, not elsewhere classified  S    P P S  P    P P S     8099 Health and allied services, not elsewhere classified  S  S  P P S  P    P P S                           81 LEGAL SERVICES                     811 Legal Services                     8111 Legal Services P P P P  P P P P     P P P                           82 EDUCATIONAL SERVICES                     821 Elementary and Secondary Schools                     8211 Elementary and secondary schools          P           822 Colleges and Universities                     8221 Colleges and universities          P           8222 Junior colleges          P           823 Libraries                     8231 Libraries          P           824 Vocational Schools          P           8243 Data processing schools  P  P   S/A       P A P     8244 Business and secretarial schools  P  P   S/A   P  S  S A P     8249 Vocational schools, not elsewhere classified  P  P   S/A   P  S S  A P     829 Schools & Educational Services, not elsewhere classified                    



3 
 

 

8299 Schools & educational services, not elsewhere classified   P   S   S  S S                              83 SOCIAL SERVICES                     832 Individual and Family Services                     8322 Individual and family services  P P   S  P    P  S  P     833 Job Training and Related Services                     8331 Job training and related services  P  P  P S/A P    P P  A P     835 Child Day Care Services                     8351 Child day care services  S S P  S S/A S    S  S A S     836 Residential Care                     8361 Residential care                     839 Social Services, not elsewhere classified                     8399 Social services, not elsewhere classified  P P     P        S                           84 MUSEUMS, BOTANICAL, ZOOLOGICAL GARDENS                     841 Museums and Art Galleries                     8412 Museums and art galleries  P P     P S P    P  P     842 Botanical and Zoological Gardens                     8422 Botanical and zoological gardens          P                                 86 MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATIONS                     861 Business Associations                     8611 Business associations          P           862 Professional Organizations                     8621 Professional organizations          P           863 Labor Organizations                     8631 Labor organizations          P           864 Civic and Social Associations                     8641 Civic and social associations    P      P           865 Political Organizations                     8651 Political organizations          P           866 Religious Organizations                     8661 Religious organizations          P           869 Membership Organizations, not elsewhere classified                     8699 Membership organizations, not elsewhere classified          P                                 87 ENGINEERING & MANAGEMENT SERVICES                     871 Engineering & Architectural Services                     8711 Engineering services P   P  P P S P     P P S     8712 Architectural services P   P  P P P P     P P P     8713 Surveying services P   P  P P S P     P P S     872 Accounting, Auditing, & Bookkeeping                     8721 Accounting, auditing, & bookkeeping P   P  P P P P     P P P     873 Research and Testing Services                     8731 Commercial physical research   S   S S S      S S S     8732 Commercial nonphysical research   S   S S S      S S S     8733 Noncommercial research organizations   S   S S S      S S S     8734 Testing laboratories            P P        874 Management and Public Relations                     8741 Management services P   P  P P P S     P P P     8742 Management consulting services P   P  P P P      P P P     (Permitted Use = P, Special Use = S, Not Permitted = Blank) 

       
SECTION 5:  The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.  Should any 

term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 6: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 7: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

passage and publication. 
 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
______ day of __________________, 2016, by Alderman ___________________________. 

 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 

Franklin this ______ day of _______________________, 2016. 



4 
 

 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
             
       Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______  ABSENT ______    



Table 15-3.0603 (continued) 
SIC                       
NO STANDARD INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION TITLE B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 B-5 B-6 B-7 CC VB I-1 P-1 M-1 M-2 BP OL-1 OL-2 A-1 A-2 M-3 L-1 PDD 

806 Hospitals                      
8062 General medical & surgical hospitals       S   P    P S       
8063 Psychiatric hospitals       P   P    P S       
8069 Specialty hospitals except psychiatric       P   P    P S       
807 Medical and Dental Laboratories                      

8071 Medical laboratories  P P    P S    P P P P S      
8072 Dental laboratories  P     P  S   P P P P S      
808 Home Health Care Services                      

8082 Home health care services  P P P P  P S       P S     P 
809 Health and Allied Services, not elsewhere classified                      

8092 Kidney dialysis centers  S    P P S  P    P P S     P 
8093 Specialty outpatient clinics, not elsewhere classified  S    P P S  P    P P S     P 
8099 Health and allied services, not elsewhere classified  S  S  P P S  P    P P S     P 

                       
81 LEGAL SERVICES                      

811 Legal Services                      
8111 Legal Services P P P P  P P P P     P P P     P 

                       
82 EDUCATIONAL SERVICES                      

821 Elementary and Secondary Schools                      
8211 Elementary and secondary schools          P            
822 Colleges and Universities                      

8221 Colleges and universities          P            
8222 Junior colleges          P            
823 Libraries                      

8231 Libraries          P            
824 Vocational Schools          P            

8243 Data processing schools  P  P   S/A       P A P      
8244 Business and secretarial schools  P  P   S/A   P  S  S A P      
8249 Vocational schools, not elsewhere classified  P  P   S/A   P  S S  A P      
829 Schools & Educational Services, not elsewhere classified                     

8299 Schools & educational services, not elsewhere classified   P   S   S  S S         
                       

83 SOCIAL SERVICES                      
832 Individual and Family Services                      

8322 Individual and family services  P P   S  P    P  S  P     S 
833 Job Training and Related Services                      

8331 Job training and related services  P  P  P S/A P    P P  A P     P 
835 Child Day Care Services                      

8351 Child day care services  S S P  S S/A S    S  S A S     S 
836 Residential Care                      

8361 Residential care                     S 
839 Social Services, not elsewhere classified                      

8399 Social services, not elsewhere classified  P P     P        S     S 
                       

84 MUSEUMS, BOTANICAL, ZOOLOGICAL GARDENS                      
841 Museums and Art Galleries                      

8412 Museums and art galleries  P P     P S P    P  P      
842 Botanical and Zoological Gardens                      

8422 Botanical and zoological gardens          P            
                       

86 MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATIONS                      
861 Business Associations                      

8611 Business associations  P P   P P P      P P P     P 
862 Professional Organizations                      

8621 Professional organizations  P P   P P P      P P P     P 
863 Labor Organizations                      

8631 Labor organizations  P P   P P P      P P P      
864 Civic and Social Associations                      

8641 Civic and social associations  P P P  P P P      P P P      
865 Political Organizations                      

8651 Political organizations  P P   P P P      P P P      
866 Religious Organizations                      

8661 Religious organizations      P P P  P     P       
869 Membership Organizations, not elsewhere classified                      

8699 Membership organizations, not elsewhere classified  P P   S S P      S S P     P 
                       

87 ENGINEERING & MANAGEMENT SERVICES                      
871 Engineering & Architectural Services                      

8711 Engineering services P   P  P P S P     P P S      
8712 Architectural services P   P  P P P P     P P P      
8713 Surveying services P   P  P P S P     P P S      
872 Accounting, Auditing, & Bookkeeping                      

8721 Accounting, auditing, & bookkeeping P   P  P P P P     P P P      
873 Research and Testing Services                      

8731 Commercial physical research   S   S S S      S S S      
8732 Commercial nonphysical research   S   S S S      S S S      
8733 Noncommercial research organizations   S   S S S      S S S      
8734 Testing laboratories            P P         
874 Management and Public Relations                      

8741 Management services P   P  P P P S     P P P      
8742 Management consulting services P   P  P P P      P P P      

(Permitted Use = P, Special Use = S, Not Permitted = Blank) 

 
City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance  
Part 3: Zoning Districts: District Establishment, Dimensional, and Use Regulations  Page 3-136 

nickf
Typewritten Text
Existing

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text



Table 15-3.0603 (continued) 
SIC                       
NO STANDARD INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION TITLE B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 B-5 B-6 B-7 CC VB I-1 P-1 M-1 M-2 BP OL-1 OL-2 A-1 A-2 M-3 L-1 PDD 

806 Hospitals                      
8062 General medical & surgical hospitals       S   P    P S       
8063 Psychiatric hospitals       P   P    P S       
8069 Specialty hospitals except psychiatric       P   P    P S       
807 Medical and Dental Laboratories                      

8071 Medical laboratories  P P    P S    P P P P S      
8072 Dental laboratories  P     P  S   P P P P S      
808 Home Health Care Services                      

8082 Home health care services  P P P P  P S       P S     P 
809 Health and Allied Services, not elsewhere classified                      

8092 Kidney dialysis centers  S    P P S  P    P P S     P 
8093 Specialty outpatient clinics, not elsewhere classified  S    P P S  P    P P S     P 
8099 Health and allied services, not elsewhere classified  S  S  P P S  P    P P S     P 

                       
81 LEGAL SERVICES                      

811 Legal Services                      
8111 Legal Services P P P P  P P P P     P P P     P 

                       
82 EDUCATIONAL SERVICES                      

821 Elementary and Secondary Schools                      
8211 Elementary and secondary schools          P            
822 Colleges and Universities                      

8221 Colleges and universities          P            
8222 Junior colleges          P            
823 Libraries                      

8231 Libraries          P            
824 Vocational Schools          P            

8243 Data processing schools  P  P   S/A       P A P      
8244 Business and secretarial schools  P  P   S/A   P  S  S A P      
8249 Vocational schools, not elsewhere classified  P  P   S/A   P  S S  A P      
829 Schools & Educational Services, not elsewhere classified                     

8299 Schools & educational services, not elsewhere classified   P   S   S  S S         
                       

83 SOCIAL SERVICES                      
832 Individual and Family Services                      

8322 Individual and family services  P P   S  P    P  S  P     S 
833 Job Training and Related Services                      

8331 Job training and related services  P  P  P S/A P    P P  A P     P 
835 Child Day Care Services                      

8351 Child day care services  S S P  S S/A S    S  S A S     S 
836 Residential Care                      

8361 Residential care                     S 
839 Social Services, not elsewhere classified                      

8399 Social services, not elsewhere classified  P P     P        S     S 
                       

84 MUSEUMS, BOTANICAL, ZOOLOGICAL GARDENS                      
841 Museums and Art Galleries                      

8412 Museums and art galleries  P P     P S P    P  P      
842 Botanical and Zoological Gardens                      

8422 Botanical and zoological gardens          P            
                       

86 MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATIONS                      
861 Business Associations                      

8611 Business associations  P P   P P P      P P P     P 
862 Professional Organizations                      

8621 Professional organizations  P P   P P P      P P P     P 
863 Labor Organizations                      

8631 Labor organizations  P P   P P P      P P P      
864 Civic and Social Associations                      

8641 Civic and social associations  P P P  P P P      P P P      
865 Political Organizations                      

8651 Political organizations  P P   P P P      P P P      
866 Religious Organizations                      

8661 Religious organizations      P P P  P     P       
869 Membership Organizations, not elsewhere classified                      

8699 Membership organizations, not elsewhere classified  P P   S S P      S S P     P 
                       

87 ENGINEERING & MANAGEMENT SERVICES                      
871 Engineering & Architectural Services                      

8711 Engineering services P   P  P P S P     P P S      
8712 Architectural services P   P  P P P P     P P P      
8713 Surveying services P   P  P P S P     P P S      
872 Accounting, Auditing, & Bookkeeping                      

8721 Accounting, auditing, & bookkeeping P   P  P P P P     P P P      
873 Research and Testing Services                      

8731 Commercial physical research   S   S S S      S S S      
8732 Commercial nonphysical research   S   S S S      S S S      
8733 Noncommercial research organizations   S   S S S      S S S      
8734 Testing laboratories            P P         
874 Management and Public Relations                      

8741 Management services P   P  P P P S     P P P      
8742 Management consulting services P   P  P P P      P P P      

(Permitted Use = P, Special Use = S, Not Permitted = Blank) 

 
City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance  
Part 3: Zoning Districts: District Establishment, Dimensional, and Use Regulations  Page 3-136 

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Rectangle

nickf
Typewritten Text
P

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text
P

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text
P

nickf
Typewritten Text
P

nickf
Typewritten Text
P

nickf
Typewritten Text
P

nickf
Typewritten Text
P

nickf
Typewritten Text
P

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Typewritten Text
Proposed

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Highlight

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Cross-Out

nickf
Cross-Out



      C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of September 22, 2016 
 

Installation of Shed within 40 foot Landscape Buffer 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Department of City Development Staff recommends denial of the 
request to allow a shed to remain within the 40-foot Landscape Buffer upon Lot 9 of the Victory 
Creek Estates Subdivision.           

Project Name:  Shed Installation within 40 foot Landscape Buffer 

Project Address: 4089 West Whispering Ridge Pass 

Applicant: William and Melissa Gebhard 

Owners (property): William and Melissa Gebhard  

Current Zoning: R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District 

Use of Surrounding Properties: Single-family residential to the north, south, east and west   

Applicant Action Requested: Recommendation of approval to allow a shed within the 40-
foot Landscape Buffer of the Victory Creek Estates 
Subdivision  

 

Introduction/Project Description:  
On August 22, 2016, the applicant submitted a Miscellaneous Application requesting permission 
to allow a shed to remain within the 40-foot Landscape Buffer denoted on the Final Plat of the 
Victory Creek Estates Subdivision for Lot 9, located at 4089 West Whispering Ridge Pass. 
 
The Victory Creek Estates Subdivision Final Plat was approved by the Common Council on 
August 14, 2001 by Resolution No. 2001-5257 and contains a 40 foot Landscape Buffer for all 
lots abutting West Drexel Avenue.  
 
The applicant recently constructed a shed within this area and is requesting release of the plat 
restriction to allow the shed to remain in its current location. According to the applicant, the shed 
is setback approximately 9-feet from the south or rear property line abutting W. Drexel Avenue 
and about 19’ from the east or side property line. The Building Permit plans submitted by the 
applicant and approved by the City illustrated the shed at 9-feet from the Landscape Buffer, not 
the rear property line. 
 
The applicant has provided the attached narrative stating the reasons for their request as well as 
emails in support of the shed from the property to the south on the other side of W. Drexel 
Avenue and from Angela Beadle, Treasurer of the Victory Creek Estates Homeowners 
Association. The applicant is also proposing landscaping to the rear and side of the shed in 
addition to the plantings already installed. 
 

Item D.1. 



 2 

Condition No. 3 of Resolution No. 99-4951, approving the Preliminary Plat for Victory Creek 
Estates Subdivision: 
  

• Lots 1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 25 and 26 shall be designed to provide greater depth to 
accommodate 40 landscape buffer and double sided lots and lots shall be a minimum of 
150 feet deep at the shortest lot line, prior to Final Plat submittal. 

 
In review of aerial photography, there are some existing encroachments (see below). Note that 
building permits were not found on file for the shed on Lot 5 or for the split rail fencing on Lots 
7, 8, 11 and 13.  
 

• Lot 5, 3979 W. Whispering Ridge Pass - shed 
• Lot 7, 4037 W. Whispering Ridge Pass (and partly extending onto Lot 8, 4089 W. 

Whispering Ridge Pass) – split rail fence 
• Lot 11, 4135 W. Whispering Ridge Pass – split rail fence 
• Lot 13, 4169 W. Whispering Ridge Pass – split rail fence 
• Lot 26, 7883 Victory Creek Court – play structure 

 
There are also several properties listed below that have structures located in compliance with and 
outside of the 40-foot Landscape Buffer.  
 

• Lot 5, 3979 W. Whispering Ridge Pass – play structures  
• Lot 10, 4113 W. Whispering Ridge Pass – fence or retaining wall  
• Lot 12, 4157 W. Whispering Ridge Pass – play structure  
• Lot 13, 4169 W. Whispering Ridge Pass – play structure 

 
Currently and at the time of the subject plat approval, Section 15-5.0102 of the UDO requires 
Landscape Bufferyard Easements when lots within a proposed Subdivision back upon right-of-
way of an existing or proposed limited access arterial street or highway. More specifically, a 
planting strip must be a minimum of thirty feet in width and is reserved for the planting of trees 
and shrubs, and the building of structures is prohibited.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Department of City Development Staff recommends denial of the request to allow a shed to 
remain within the 40-foot Landscape Buffer upon Lot 9 of the Victory Creek Estates 
Subdivision. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                            [Draft 9-15-16] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A SHED  
WITHIN THE 40 FOOT LANDSCAPE PLANTING BUFFER PLAT RESTRICTION, 

UPON LOT 9 IN VICTORY CREEK ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
(4089 WEST WHISPERING RIDGE PASS) 

(WILLIAM GEBHARD AND MELISSA BANIA (GEBHARD), APPLICANTS) 
              
 
 WHEREAS, the Victory Creek Estates Subdivision Plat prohibits the building of 
structures within the 40 foot “Landscape Planting Buffer” described thereon; and 
 
 WHEREAS, William Gebhard and Melissa Bania (Gebhard) having applied for a 
release of the 40 foot “Landscape Planting Buffer” easement restriction upon their property 
to the extent necessary to install a shed within the existing tree line located on the rear 
(south) side of the property which abuts West Drexel Avenue to the south, and within the 
easement upon the property located at 4089 West Whispering Ridge Pass, such property 
being zoned R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District, bearing Tax Key No. 787-
0009-000, is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Lot 9 in Victory Creek Estates, Part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 
of Section 11 and part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 12, 
All in Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee 
County, Wisconsin; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the 40 foot “Landscape Planting Buffer” easement restriction upon the 
Final Plat for Victory Creek Estates Subdivision and its accompanying restriction of the 
building of structures is a restriction which was imposed by the Franklin Common Council in 
its approval of the Final Plat; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Wis. Stats. § 236.293 provides in part that any restriction placed on 
platted land by covenant, grant of easement or in any other manner, which was required by a 
public body vests in the public body the right to enforce the restriction at law or in equity and 
that the restriction may be released or waived in writing by the public body having the right 
of enforcement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the request for the release of 
the 40 foot “Landscape Planting Buffer” easement restriction only so as to allow for the 
subject shed installation, and having considered the proposed location of and type of shed to 
be installed upon the subject property in conjunction with existing and required landscaping 
on the property, and that the proposed shed will not be readily visible from the adjoining 
highway or create any adverse impact upon the aesthetic or buffering purposes of the 
landscape bufferyard. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-____ 
Page 2 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the installation of the proposed shed of the type and 
specifications as described and only upon the location as set forth within the plans 
accompanying the application of William Gebhard and Melissa Bania (Gebhard) filed on 
August 19, 2016, be and the same is hereby authorized and approved and that the 
“Landscape Planting Buffer” easement restriction as it would otherwise apply to such 
installation upon the subject property only, is hereby waived and released. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the applicant shall further obtain all required 
permit(s) for the installation of the subject shed and that the subject shed shall be installed 
pursuant to such permit(s) within one year of the date hereof, or all approvals granted 
hereunder shall be null and void. 
 
 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same are hereby 
directed to obtain the recording of this Resolution with the Office of the Register of Deeds 
for Milwaukee County. 
  
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2016. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2016. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 






















































	2016-0922 Plan Commission Agenda
	FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

	2016-0908 PC Minutes Draft
	2016-0922 PC Report - Membership Organizations UDO TA
	2016-0922 ORD MembershipOrganizationsReligiousUsesUDOTA (9-8-16)
	15-3.0603 Membership Organizations
	UDO Update - Dec 2014

	15-3.0603 Membership Organizations - Proposed Table
	UDO Update - Dec 2014

	2016-0922 PC Report - Gebhard Easement Release Request
	2016-0922 RES Gebhard shed release of easment restrict. (9-15-16)
	237 Victory Creek Estates Subd Plat
	Building Permit Plans
	PC Submittal (9-9-16)



